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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' report
for the year endad 31 August 2024

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial slatements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024, The annual report serves the purposes
of both & Trustees’ report and a Directors’ report under company law.

The Trust operates four primary academies and one secondary academy in the City of Nottingham and two
junior academies; two primary academies and one infant academy in Derbyshire. iis academies have a
cambined pupil capacity of 3,388 and had a roll of 3,330 in the school census of October 2024

The Trust alzo has a wholly owned subsidiary, Djanogly Letlings Limited, through which the Trust conducts the
felting of premises and faciiities. The results of the subsidiary are consolidated within these financial statements.

Structure, governance and management

a, Constitution
The Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The Trusts memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy
Trust.

The Trustees of Djanogly Learning Trust are also the directors of the chartable company for the purposes of
company law.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date are approved and inciuded n the Reference
and administrative details on page 1

The Trust also has a wholly owned subsidiary, Djanogly Lettings Limited, through which the Trust conducts the
letting of premises and facilities. Djanogly Lettings Limited is a limiled company and is governed by the
company's directors.

b. Members’ liability

Each member of the Trust undertakes {o contribute to the assets of the Trust in the event of it being wound up
while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required,
not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted belore they ceased to be a member.

¢. Trustees’ indemnities
The Trustees have in place appropriate indemnities with unlimited cover on any one claim.
d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Trustees are appointed for a term of four years. At the end of thekr term, any Truslee may be re-appointed or re-
elected, subject io eligibility. The present Trustees are set out on page 1. As per Articles, Members appointed
are re-appointedico-oplted by the board.

2. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for Trustees and new Trustees will depend on their existing experience.
Where necessary, induction will provide training on educational, legal and financial matters. All new Trustees
undergo a structured induction process. Training requirements are subject to on-going review,
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DJANCGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Trustees® report {continued)
for the yvear ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management {continuad)

{. Organisationad structure

Djanogly Learning Trust is composed of:
Djanogly City Academy (DCA}
Dianogly Northgate Academy (DNA)
Dianogly Strelley Academy (DSA)
Springfield Academy (SPA)

Langley Mill Academy (LMA)
Dianogly Sherwood Academy (DSH)
Laceyfields Academy (LFA)
Kensington Junior Academy (KJA)
torton Primary Academy (MPA)
Hilltop Primary Academy (HPA)

¢ & @ B O & & H B &

Hilltop Primary Academy (MPA) joined the Trust in April 2024.

Djanogly Learning Trust has a wholly owned subsidiary, Djanogly Lettings Limited, through which the Trust
conducts the letting of premises and facilities of the Trust when not in use by the academies. The results of
Dianogly Lettings Limited have been consolidated into the Djanogiy Learning Trust group financial statermnents for
the year. The Directors of Djanogly Lellings Limited include the Chair of the Trust Board and members of the
Sirategic Executive Team, the elements of governance and management referred to in the report apply to this
subsidiary.

The management structure of the Trust comprises; The Members, the Board of Trustees, the Strategic
Executive Team, the Academy L.eaders and the Local Governing Body of sach individual academy.

The Board of Trustees {the Hoard} meets as a minimum three times per year. Under the Articles of Association,
the Board is able to establish committees, to whom it delegates specific authority as part of an agreed scheme of
delegation. The principal committees are known as Local Governing Bodies, they are responsible through the
scheme of delegation for the individual academies. These commitiees meet 28 a minimum four times per year.

There are also three commilleas within the main Board: Achievement, Standards & Wellbeing, Audit, Risk &
Finance and HR & Remuneration Committees. The role and function of these commiltees are reviewed annually
by the Board,

The Strategic Executive Team headed by the Chief Executive Officer, are senior officers of the Trust tasked with
the operational business of running the Trust on a day-to-day basis.

At academy level the individual Academy Leader is supporied by their executive staff and Local Govemning
Bodies (LGB} to ensure effective control, For new academies, the infial governing body will generally be in the
form of a Trangition Governing Body (TGB) for the first vesr or exceptionally, an interim Execufive Board (JEB)
where the previcus governing body is not deemed appropriate to commence as a TGB.

a. Arrangements for setiing pay and remuneration of key management personne}

The pay for key management personnel is sel within ranges already agreed by the HR & Remuneration
Commiltes, having dus regard to market pay and conditions for similar posts to ensure we remain competitive,
Progress through the agreed salary range has for 2023/24 continued to be dictated by the Joumney to Excellence
(JZE] process, which is also reviewed by the HR & Remuneration Commullee. From September 2024, the Trust
has changed Es appraisal process. Rather than this being linked to pay, all employees will have two career
development and welibeing conversations with thelr Hne manager providing an opportunity 1o discuss
development opportunities. Performance reviews for the CEQ are held regulary with Trustees throughout the
year.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management {continued}

h. Engagement with employees

During the financial year the Trustees have continued to consult with employees so that their views can be taken
into account in making decisions which are likely to affect their interests. There is a regular Joint Union meeting
on a termly basis with recognised trade unions taking part in the discussion. The CEO provides an update on the
parformance of the Trust at this meeling. Staff are surveyed twice a year for their opinions on a number of topics,
in November 2023, the staff survey results showed that 87% believe that we live our values and pul children first,
83% were happy at work and 71% would recommend the Trust o friends as a great place to work, 62% of al!
staff responded o the survey. We also carried out a survey specifically focused on staff wellbeing in the spring
term 2024 and the CEQ and CFOO met employee voice representatives from all academies and the central
team, and these meetlings continue termly. We have made a number of changes as a resuit of the responses

from these surveys and employee voice meetings, and these have shaped our redefined people strategy for
2024/25.

The Trust's policy n respect of equalily and disabled persons is that all applications for employment are atways
fully and fairly considered against a short listing criteria and scored against a person specification. in the event of
a member of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with the Trust continues
and where necessary, appropriale training is aranged. It is the Trust's policy that training, career development

and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other employees in a
simitar position.

i, Trade union facility time

Under the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, the Trust can report that it

had no employees who were relevant union officials for any time during the period between 1 September 2023
and 31 August 2024,

j. Conflicts of interest

The Trust maintains an up-to-date and complete register of interests covering the interests of all senior staff,
governors, frustees and members. The register is updated annually with any changes in year being notified to
the Head of Governance. At the beginning of every meeting of members, board of trustees and focal governing
hodies attendees are asked to disclose any conflicts of interest in any agenda item. The Trust has implemented

a conflicts of interest policy which sets out the reporting requirements for members, trustees, governors, senior
staff members and any related parlies.

As a Trust we foster and encourage collaborative working. We have strong relationships with other Trusis
including through our membership of Inspiring Leaders where as a group of local Trusis we have access to
networking, shared knowledge and CPD. We also work closely with both local authorities which our schools and
communities fall within, being Derbyshire and Noftingham City.

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy trust

The Trust approach to suppliers gives primary consideration to value for money. Making use of various national
and government purchasing frameworks for certain large generic contracts such as utilities and school supplies,
in addition, many suppliers are local to the schools to further cement our work in the communities in which the
Trust operates.

The Trust actively engages with the ESFA and the Local Authorities being the agencies responsible for the
provision of the vast majority of Trust income. Other customers of the Trust come mainly in the form of other
Trusts who commission support from Djanocgly and Lettings customers. The aim is to treat all customers fairly in
an open and transparent manner befitting of 2 community leading organisation,
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Trustees’ repori {continued}
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and managemant [continued)

Objectives and activifies

a. Objects and alms

The principal object and aim of the Trust is the operation of Dianogly Learning Trust to provide education for
students of different abilities between the ages of Z and 19 at the ten academies within the Trust.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Trust's strategic obisctives are.

Excelience in teaching and learning:

Investing in continuous professional development for our staff, equipping them with research driven
pedagogical slrategies and adaplive teaching practices resulting in high-guality instruction in every
classroom.

Committing to an ambitious, creafive, knowledge rich, well sequenced, and inclusive curriculum.
Implementing our curriculur effectively so that children and young people are motivated, challenged, know
more, remember more, and are ready for their next stage of learning.

Devaloping purposeful learning environments where children and young people are enthused, and excited in
their learning.

Committing to :mproving the #fe chances of alt children and young people through aspiration and ambition
celebrating exceflent qutcomes for all learners.

Using assessment effectively to chack for understanding and to inform future planning and impiementation.
Prioritising reading so that all children and young people gain a love of books and learning.

Excelience in leadership, innovation, and creativity:

@ @

e 9 o 0

Expecting leaders to communicate a clear and ambitious vision.

Ensuring staff are providing insightful support and challenge to, and with each other. Upholding the Trust's
values and behaviours through an engaged, commilted, and motivated workforce.

Accountability is valued and all colleagues have clarify of their role and responsibility.

Creating & culture of positivity by recruiting, and refaining high-quality, talented staff, who have the
knowledge and support to develop their professional practice and caregers,

Having effective governance at all levels.

Engaging all stakeholders, building strong links with the local community.

Ensuring value for money and efficiency through organisational synergy.

Encouraging & culture of intelligent problem solvers who explore new opportunities, take measured risks,
and invest in improving children and young people's lives,

Create outstanding provision that meets the individual needs of ail children through the introduction of new
enhanced resource facilities, specialist seltings and alter-native provision that will benefit the children and
young peopte within the Trust and those from other schools.

Excelience in personal development, behaviour, and attitudes:

i

Implementing a curriculum that supports the holistic and personal development of all children and young
paople, which develops mental health and wellbeing enabling individuals to overcome barriers.

Developing effective systems in all our schools to improve altendance, punctuality, and behaviour.
Committing to rich opportunities, where children and young people flourish, thrive, and succeed, having
access to wider, memorable experiences oulside the class-room,
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
1A LOmpany Limited Dy Giuarantee)

Trustess’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities {continued}

= Preparing our children and young people for their adult fife in modern Britain. including appropriale careers,
health social, and economic education.

« Being part of a culture that is vigilant and proactive with robust systems designed so that all children, young
people, and staff feel safe and are safe.

Excellonce in effective collaboration and parinership working:

» Using collaboration within our schools, across our Trust and wider stake-holders to drive improvement,
» Promoting effective leadership that supporis strong relationships between children, young people, and staff,

Our strategies and activities will be aligned to ensure these objectives are met.

¢. Public banefit

In sefting our objectives and planning our activities, the Trustees have considered the Charity Commission's
generat guidelines on public benefit

As well as the public benefit generated through its principal object, the Trust locks to promote for the benefil of
the focal community: the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who
have need of such faciliies by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social
and economic ¢ircumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the object of
improving the community.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance including koy performance indicators {Pis}

a. Key performance indicators

KPls for the performance of each academy {(as part of the Academy Dashboard report) and the Trust as a whole
are brought before the Local Governing Body and the Board on a reguiar basis. They provide academy specific
contextual information aboul cohort make up and details about exam resulls, progress measures, behaviours
and attendance. Further data are maintained on staff absence, turnover, PMR results, observations, and staff
SUrveys.

Djanogly City Academy {DCA}

Contextual Information from October 2024 Census

Current Ofsted grade Good {May 2018)
Numbers on roll 1,258

Pupil Premium % 44%

English as Additional Language % 78%

Special Educational Needs and Disability % 13%
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DJAMOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

Trustees’ report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report {continued)

Achievements and performance including key performance indicators {KPis} (continued)

Hey Stage 4:
Progress B DCA 2022 BCA 2023 Mational 2023 Mational 2024
{Disadvantaged in | {Disadvantaged in
brackats} brackets)
0.08 -0.14 -3.03 (-0.57) -0.12 {-0.53}
MATY 2023 LA 2023 DCA 2024 Dis DCA 2024
AR 48.2 42 4 40.5 32.8
P8 -0.03 .21 .12 -0.53
EmMS+ 45% 35% 38.3% 21.4%
ER4+ 65% 57% 57% 44%
EBACC APS 405 3.62 375 3.02
GCSE DCA 2622 DCA 2023 Mational 2023 DCA 2024
EM4+ 54% 52% 65% 57%
EMS+ 25% 32% 45% 36.3%

Quality of educational provision at Djanogly City Academy continues to improve year on year. Subject leaders
are ensuring consistency of approach and depth of curriculum across KS3 and KS4 in order lo ensure that all
children have access to a broad and balanced curriculurn. The school was judged 'Good’ by Ofsted in April 2018.

Outcomes in 2024 are up on oculcomes in 2023 against most markers, and also against a national picture
showing a decline in outcomes from 2023. (AB up frem 39.8 to 40.5; P8 up from -0.14 to -0.12; EM4+ 5% up on
last year, and EMS+ 4,3% up).

When looking at recent data published by The Sutfon Trust, which compares the progress of schools who take in
a higher proportion of disadvantaged scholars than reside in theilr local community, a P8 of -0.12 would have
placed us in the top 7 highest performing schools nationally with a similar context to DCA (based on the only
available, 2018-22, roliing national data).

Key Stage &:
Al student (Cobort Size 37} DCA 2624 Maticnal 2013
APS per entry {average grade) 31.2 (C=) 33.7{CH
Disadvantaged APS 336{CH NA
% AAB 11% 12.3%
Progress {value added} +0.08 {grades} 0.0
% A* -A or equiv 23% 25.5%
% A B or sguiv 8% 51.4%
% A% or aguiy 63% 75.6%
% A* D or eguiy 8% 90.8%
% A* -E or squiv 98% 97.4%

This was the first set of Post 16 results with a full cohort and many teachers were new to Post 18 teaching.
Ar-A results higher than target (18%) at 23%.

Disadvantaged students pedormed better than their non-disadvantaged psers (APS 33.6 comparad io 28.1),
bucking the national trend.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)

for the year ended 31 August 2024

Steategic report {continued}

Achievements and performance insluding key performance indicators {KPls} (continued)

All {31} students who werg looking at attending HE have been successful in being offered places, most to their

first-choice destination,

A VA of +0.08 places us at the top 35th percentile of all A level providers,

Primasy Academiss

The Trust provides educalion to 2072 primary school and early years children across Noftingham and

Derbyshire; areas of significantly higher social deprivation than the national average.

Contextual information: DNA, DSA, SPA, DSH and LFA are Ofsted rated Good. KJA was Ofsted inspected in
2023/24 and rated Gaod. LMA was Ofsted rated requires improvement in 2021/22 and is awaiting 2 follow up
inspection. MPA joined the Trust in 2023 with an inadequate Ofsted rating and HPA joined the Trust in 2024

having received a second Rl inspection grade,

Contextual Mumbers on roll Pupil Premium % EAL % SEN%
information from
October 2024
Census

DNA 342 A41% 49% 15%
DSA 382 80% 29% 18%
SPA 214 58% 17% 21%
LMA 2956 39% 6% 22%
DSH 358 7% 48% 15%
LFA 76 29% 4% 8%
KJA 181 51% 8% 25%
MPA 99 _20% 4% 7%
HPA 124 38% 18% 22%

Trust Primaries 2,072 45% 27% 18%

The overall KS2 {reading, writing & maths combined) data for the 8 primary academies for 2024 is as follows:

2022 7023 2624
DNA 69% 50% 76%
DSA 32% 55% 45%
SPA 60% 52% a5%
LMA 40% 71% 55%
OSH 57% 56% 60%
KJA 87% B87% 67%
MPA : 81% 88%
HPA : : 1%
National 55% 59% 1%

* Resulls excluded as prior {o joining the Trust

** Unvalidated at point of publishing

Being an infant school, LFA does not have Key Stage 2 students,
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DJANOCLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes}

Trustess’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Strateglc report {continued}
Achisvements and performance including key performance indicators (KPls}) {continued)

Northgate originally joined with Cily Academy in August 2011 fo form the MAT. Subsequent primary schools that
have joined the Trust have been in challenging circumstances with tess than 'Good’ Ofsted judgements and
below national outcomes. School improvement experlise has been shared, expectations have been raised,
leadership and governance have been challenged and supporied in equal measure, all leading to significant
improvermnents in quality of provision and outcomes for children. Disengaged comrmunities have been re-engaged
with the majority of parents taking a more active and informed role in their children's education.

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Truslees have 2 reasonable expectation that the Trust has adeguate
resources o continue in operationat existence for the foreseeable fulure. For this reasen, it continues 1o adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.

c. Promaoting the success of the company

The Board of Trustees has in place formal approved Terms of Reference, which create the framework for the
Trustees to achieve its purpose of leading and directing the affairs of the Trust in order to promote the long-term
sustainable success of the Trust and ensuring sound governance, with consideration for the interesis of
employeas, suppliers and other stakeholders. As referenced elsewhere within the Trustees report and
Governance Statemerd, this is achiaved by close monitoring of the outcomes across our academies. Resources
are directed to best ensure success and strong risk management processes and systems of intemnal controt
ensure compliance.

Financial review

Most of the Trust's income in the year was obtained from the ESFA (Education and Skills Funding Agency, an
executive agency of the DE) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes.

The grants received during the year and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

In accordance with Accounting and Reporiing by Charities ~ Statement of Recommended Praclice
(*SORP2019%, grants and donations for capital are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted
fixed asset funds. The balance sheet restricted fixed asset fund is reduced by transfers of amounts equivalent to
any depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned. The change of status from
registered to exempt! charily does nof change the requirement fo reporl under the SORP above as that is
diclated by the funding agreement.

Al 31 August 2024 the Trust had fixed assels with a net book value of £63,964,000 (2023: £60,437.000} and
movements in tangible fixed assets are shown in note 14 to the financial staternents.

The assels are used exclusively for providing education and associated suppor services 1o the studenis of the
Trust.

At 31 August 2024 the Trust pension scheme had a deficit of £330,000 (2023 £391,000) and movements in the
pension fund are shown in note 25 to the financial staterents.

The Trust also held fund balances at 31 August 2024 of £2 782 000 (2023: £3.423,000) comprising £2,130.000
(2023: £2 802 000} of restricted funds and £652 000 {2023 £821,000) of unrestricted funds. The fund balances
are adequate to fulfil the obligations of the Trust and provide a balance against most unforeseen fulure events.
To achieve the development plan objectives and for other major capital projects the Trust remains dependent on
the provision of additionat fixed asset grants from both the ESFA and commercial sponsors,
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Strategic report {continued)

Hilltop Primary Academy joined the Trust on 1 April 2024, The impact on the SOFA was an increase in assets of
£3,102,000, the school transfered assels of £3,197,000 and £33,000 surplus from the local authority less
£128,000 deficit on #ts share of the LGPS.

At 31 August 2024, the Trust's subsidiary, Dianogly Letlings Limited, generated a profit of £1,718 (2023;
£35,341}, Djanogly Lettings Limited is a wholly owned subsigdiary company through which the Trust carries out its
lefting activities with a primary focus around community ahgagement,

The Trust's exposure to risk i8 largely bank balances, cash and trade creditors, with fimited trade and other
debtor balances.

The Trust has inherited the Local Government defined benefit pension scheme deficit for associate staff, which
has decreased overall this year in line with acluarial valuations as prepared by Barnett Waddingham and

Hymans Robertson the pension’s actuary for Nottinghamshire Counly Council and Detbyshire County Coungil
respectively.

a, Reserves policy

The total free reserves at 31 August 2024 amounted to £2,782,000 {2023: £3,423,600). The policy of the Trustis
to carry forward a prudent level of resources designed to meet the fong term cydlical needs of renewal and any
other unforeseen contingencies plus a contribulion towards fulure capital and IT investment over and above that
funded through ESFA capital grants. Three year financial plans are prepared as part of the annual cycle {and fo
inform budgeting), which help to initiate mitigating strategies for any years for which a gap has been identified,

b. Investmant policy

The Trust does not consciously make investments or manage any cash surpluses in a way that could carry a

risk. Trustees have approved an investment policy, which ensures that the Trust obtains the best interest rates
consistent with its appetite for risk

¢. Principal risks and uncertainties

The strategic risks for the Trust are reviewed regularly by the risk management group who report back 1o the
Trustees as part of an embedded nisk management process.

The Trust has a range of risk management policies especially in operational areas relabing o teaching,
safeguarding, financial control, health and safety and school trips. Consideration of risk is carried out at strategic
trust level as well as at individual academy level.

Qur latest strategic risk register doesn't identify any risks deemead to be "significant” or “critical” although does
identify a number of risks as "difficult” and as such requiring suppor. In particular these relate to the growth or
lack of growth of the Trust causing an imbalance in capacily and financial viability. and the need to manage
change al our newes! academy HPA, with significant improvements being implemented across the academy.

Cur estate remains a key consideralion in our assessment of risk - the current risk identified on the strategic risk

register is around the risk of building or site fallure resulting in us being unable to provide a safe learning space
for our pupils.

Our risk management group have identified controls and mitigating actions in place in order to manage the threat
posed by these risks effectively. In the current year we have added o our risk management processes by
including consideration of emerging risks (such as Al and change in government) and have implemented a
change to the basis of risk scoring. The risk management group has also developed a clear plan to enhance our
risk management processes further aver the comning year.

Page 10



BJANCOGLY LEARMING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' roport [continued}
for the year ended 31 August 2024

d. Risk Management

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in parlicular those relating to
teaching, provision of facilities and ofher operational areas of the Trust and its finances. The Trustees have
implamented a number of procedures {o control and minimise risks. Where significant financial risk still remains
they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The Trust has an effective system of intemal financial
confrols and this is explained in more detail below.

e. Fundraising

The Trustees can report that under the provisions of the Charities (Profection and Social Investmentj Act 2018,
there has been no work during 2023/24 with fundraisers nor does the Trust get involved in fundraising. Any
commercial income (i.e. not directly or indirectly receivad from the Government) is generated through the Trust's
own staff by means of letting of property. The Trus! does not use external fundraisers.

Strearmnlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Energy Consumption
Quantification and reporting methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Faclors for
Company Reporting.

Key measuras taken 1o improve ensigy officiency

s+ Following a successful applicaiion for Low Carbon Skills Funding, the Trust was able to underake full Heat
De-carbonisation Plans (HDP's) at 2fl schoois within the estate, These HDP's will be used to support and
ptan measures and changes to building fabric and use to reduce energy consumption and make them more
energy efficient.

¢ By working with our energy providers we are now gathering improved energy data which is accessible to all
academies to support monitoring of energy usage through a centrat portal,

+ We have continued to evaluate the potential for a range of enargy efficiency measures to be implemented.
Argas being considered will include fabric upgrades where needed, as well as the potential for new healing
options, LED lighting replacement and Photo Voltaic roof tites where appropriate. This includes the potential
opportunity to bid for government funding in 2024/25 for two of our sites in a move towards creating carbon
neutral buildings.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes COZ2e per pupil the
recommended ratio for the seclor,
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DJAMOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

Trustees' report {continuad)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {continued}

UK Greenhouse gas emissions 1 September 2022 to 31 August 1 September 2023 to 31 August

and energy use data for the 2023 2024
period
Energy consumption used to 3,814,762 3,811,433

calculate emissions (KWh)
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes

CG2e 445.81 427 .64
Gas consumplion 0.00 0.00
Academy vehicles 445.61 427 54

Total Scope 1

Scope 2 emissions in metric lonnes
CO2e 25877 305.08
Purchased electricity

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes
€02 2.40 2.40
Staff mileage in year on academy
business

Total gross emissions in metric 706.99 732.73
tonnes CD2e
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.24 0.23

Pians for future periods

As a Trust we are committed to further managed growth, We are beginning to benefit from economies of scale
with 10 academies and just over 3,300 school-aged pupils. We are driving cost savings through our procurement
strategy but know that this could be even more effective as a medium to large sized Trust.

Over the last academic year, we have with support from the DFE been working collaboratively with another MAT.
Our Trusts have come together because of our strongly aligned values and ethos. We have recently and joindly
submitted a merger application to the DFE. I this is approved, which both Trusts very much hope is the case,
this would see us grow to & combined Trust of 15 academies {4 secondary and 11 primaries) serving in excess
of 8,000 pupiis. This would enable us to provide an exceptional educational experience and improve outcomes
for more children and young people and to have a greater impact on wider communities. This would also enabls
a greater and more effective collective provision for priority areas such as SEND, attendance, safequarding, and
disadvantaged children and young people and would provide wider opporiunities for all ¢hildren and young
people, ensuring a breadth of experiences that help prepare them for their life beyond school.

By adding to the family of schools and number of children and young people, we can ensure increased
efficiencies across our school communities, ensuring greater value for money. We will also be able to provide
wider network of professional learning and CPD together with enhanced career development opporfunities for
staff that enhance and improve recruitment and retention. All of these will improve oculcomes for children and
young people.

This opportunity will also enable us lo provide greater opportunities for effective peer to peer review, support and
challange. To enhance and develop graater expertise in the work force in order to facilitate the sharing of good
practice and the pooling of resources. It would also enable us to have a more significant voice in shaping the
national educational landscape, ensuring that we can support the Government's new direction of travel,

Outside of this exciting merger opporiunily we continue to consider alternative or supplementary growth
opportunities which may be through further sponsorship of schools lacking capacity for improvement alone or
stronger schools looking to work with a successful trust. We believe that as a merged Trust with a greater reach
across primary and secondary we will be a more attractive proposition for other academies to join hence likely to
resudt in further growth.
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DIANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes}

Trustees' report {continued}
for the year endad 31 August 2024

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others
There are no Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.
Disclosure of information to audifors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

@ there is no relevant audit information of which the chanitable company's audifors are unaware, and
s that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken lo make themselves aware of any
retevant audit information and to establish that the suditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' repor, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Trustees, as the company

directors,on [Lth Delimbir G901 L{- and signed on its behalf by:
wir Timothy Slade
{Chair of Trustees)
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DJANQGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Djanogly Learning Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or foss,

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DIE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board completed a self evaluation review in the summer term which identified a strong board. A number of
actions to further improve a small number of areas have been agreed.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-lo-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Djanogly
Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control,

Governance

The information on governance included here suppiements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Staternent of trustess’ responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year,

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meelings attended Out of a possible

Wr Timothy Slade, Chair &5 5
Mr Raphaei Richards 5 5
Mrs Christine Goldstraw, OBE, JP, DL 5 5
Dr Ken Maxwelf 8 5
Mr Duncan Bain 5 5
Professor Christopher Day 4 5
Mr Paul Feenan 2 5
Mr Kris Naidu 4 5
Sir Daniet Moynihan 2 4
Mr Syed Aftab Mohyuddin 4 $
Ms Sade Thomas Y 1

The Board of Trustees met on § occasions during the year ended 31 August 2024, This meets the requirements
of the Academy Trus! handbook (ATH) lo meet "at least three times z year”. For the year ended 31 August 2024,
“larger" trusts were also asked o consider meeting more regularly.

There has been a high tevel of engagement from the Trustees in the year to 31 August 2024,

Aftendance at meelings has been regular, and there has been review and challenge of data presented 1o the
Trustees from the Finance and Education teams, Headteachers and Trust leadership team. Four Trustees are
also part of the Audit, Risk and Finance Committee which met 4 times during the year,

The Audit, Risk and Finance Committee is a sub-commitiee of the main Board of Trustees. lis purpose is lo take
delegated responsibility on behalf of the Board of Trustees for ensuring that there is a framework for
accouniability; for examining and reviewing all systems and methods of control both financial and otherwise

including risk management, and for ensuring the Trust is complying with all aspecis of the iaw, relevant
reguiations and good praclice.
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DJAMOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarzntes)

Govemnance Statement (continued)

Governance {continued)

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings aftended Qut of a possible
Mr Duncan Bain 4 4
#r Paul Feenan 1 1
BAr Kris Naidu 4 4
Dr Ken Maxwell 4 4
#r Syed Mohyuddin 2 3

The majority of members are independent of the Board of Trustess.

Management accounts were shared monthly with the Chair of Trustees and in advance of each meeting of the
Audit, Risk and Finance Committee via the Trust's online governance portal during the year.

Taking info account the current size and geography of the Trust, the support and challenge provided by the
Audit, Risk and Finance Commitiee and level of reporting that is actively reviewed by Trustees on a regular
basis, the Board are satisfied that it has been able 1o maintain effective oversight with 5 Board meetings in the
year to 31 August 2024,

Conflicts of interest

The Trust mainiaing an up-to-date and complete register of inferests covering the interests of all senior staff;
Governors, Trustees and Members, This register is reviewed and used fo identify relaied parties so that
associatad transactions can be reported on. The register is updated annually with any changes in year being
notified to the Head of Governance. Al the baginning of every meeting of Members, Board of Trusiees and Local
Governing Bodies attendees are asked to disclose any conflicts of interest in any agenda Hem to ensure they
aren't present for decision making around that agenda item. The Trust has implemented a conflicts of interest
policy which sets out the reporting requirements for Members, Trustess, Governars, senior staff members and
any related parlies.

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refars to the
educational and wider societal cutcomes achieved in retum for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports 1o the Soard of Trustess whare valua for monay can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where appropriate,

The efficient and effective procurement of goods and services to suppont the Trust in meeting Its objectives is
assential. The Trust's central team promotes procurement professionalism o support academy staff in engaging
with suppliers and ensuring that procurement processes and procedures are appropriate and effective in order to
encourage innovation, promote sustainability and ultimately deliver value for money. In the current year the Trust
has continued 1o develop its contract log enabling us to identify when key contracts are due for renewal and alse
its procurernent sirategy which identifies priority non pay expenditure categories for review in order to achieve
best value.

The Trust has developed 2 long-term estates plan prioritising projects according to risk ensuring the safely of owr
sites. Spend on these projects has primarily been from Trust reserves although from April 2024 we have become
eligible for schoof capital altocation from the DFE and as such are using this funding to cover the costs of sligible
projects.

Whilst commoadity pricing is readily compared, value will not always just be about commodily or transactional
pricing - &.q. where service of niche capability is important, this must be accounted for in considering best value,
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DJAMOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance Statement (continuad)

The purpose of the system of internal controf

The system of internal control is designed 1o manage risk 1o a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. |t can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks 10 the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluale the fkelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectivaly and
gconomically. The system of inleral control has been in place in Dianogly Learning Trust for the year 1
September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the dale of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Truslees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemenied to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongaing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up o the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Trust's sysiem of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and

administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. in
particular, ¢ includes:

s comprehensive budgeling and monitoring systems with an annual budgel and monthly financial reporis
which are reviewed monthly by the Chair of Trustees and agreed by the Board of Trustees on a periodic
basis

e regular reviews by the Audil, Risk and Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plang, capital works and expenditure programmes
% setting targets lo measure financiat and other performance

clearly defined purchasing {asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
e delegation of authority and segregation of dulies
® identification and management of risks.

The Board of Truslees has decided to employ UHY Hacker Young as internal auditor.

UHY Hacker Young have continued to provide internal scruliny services {internal auditor) during the year. UHY
were appointed in 2020421 for an initial term of 3 years (starling September 2021) and their appoiniment has
since been extended for a further year. The internal audit firm were selected by Trustess based on gualifications,
reputation, experience and value for money. Several firms were approached and consulied but the Trustess
ware salisfied that our cheice of internal auditor would provide independent assurance o the Board that the
Trust was operating effectively.

The role of the internal auditor includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the Trust's financial and non-financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

- Expenditure - tendering/ quotations, purchasing, expense claims

- Fixed assets and capital accounting - capitalisation thresholds, capital grant income, capital expenditure
- Control account reconciliations and accounting entries - monthly financial ¢closedown

- Income

- Cash management - bank reconciliations, cash control and handling

- Payroil and HR - payroll authorisation, changes to the payroll, gross pay and deductions

- Compliance with ATH and ESFA guidance

- VAT to include credit card expenses

- IT controls in respect of authorisation of transactions
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DJANMOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranies)

Governance Statement (continued)

The risk and controf framework {continued}

In 2023124 the Internal Scrutiny auditors carried out bwo visits and identified four new recommendations. All of
these are deemed by the auditors to be low priority {"areas the Board may wish to consider as part of their
annual review of internal controls and in aiming to meet best practice guidelines™). All of these recommendations
have now been implemented. A further recommendation has been re-raised in relation o sccruals and
prepayments and this is being considered in line with our management response.

On an annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Audl, Risk and Finance
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial
responsibilities.

The Board of Trustees confirm that the internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned.

in addition to financial conirols, our internal serutiny programme also reviews non-financial areas linked in with
our risk register and bringing in specific experts to carry out these reviews.

tn 2023/24, vur risk management group agreed thal a review of health and safety compliance offered by the RPA
would be appropriate. This review took piace in November 2023 and covered our Sherwood Rise campus (where
DSH, DCA and cendral team are based), DSA, DNA and JA, The reports from these reviews were positive both
at Trust and schootl level. They identified that we have strong management and oversight processes in place and
that the tools and resources we provide {0 schools around health and safety compliance are being adopted and
used wall at Academy level. The scores provided in the reviews are as follows: Teust 86% - Providing real
confidence that the systems and processes we have in place are to a high standard. DNA 81% - Really positive
with some small improvements fo be made to documenting and providing evidence trails. 93% - Really positive
raview of the organisation and management of compliance and systems that they have in place and of adopting
the trust's processes. KJA 92% - Positive review of the organisation and management of compliance and
systems thal they have in place and of adopting the trust's processes. We have produced a recommendations
tracker showing all the recommendations from the RPA review and are following up progress as well as
considering whether any of these can be applied actoss other acadamies.

In addition, aur risk management group requested that a report be commissioned fo provide reassurance that no
RAAC was prasent in our buildings. We commissioned our external estates advisors to provide this reassurance
for us and this was reporied back to Trustees during the year.

We have aiso supplemented our normal programme of support with external reviews across our academies.

This is to validate our infernal assessment of our academies; together with the internal reviews, the additional
external reviews now form a nomnal part of our schoal improvement support.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

Governance Statement {continued)

Raview of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chie! Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
systemn of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by

° the work of the internat auditor,
the financial management and governance self-assessment process;
a the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and

mairdenance of the internal control framework.
e the work of the external auditors;
* correspondence from ESFA e.g. FNtYNH and ‘'minded to’ letters.

The accounling officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of intemal
control by the audit and risk committee and 2 plan to address weaknesses and ensure continucus improvement
of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the

opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effeciive framework for governance, risk management and
control,

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trusless on U_ii., {3 mr zﬂi*and signed on
their behalf by

Mr Timothy Slade Mr Mark Mallender
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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DJANOQGLY LEARNING TRUST
{& Company Limited by Guarantes}

Statement of Regularity, Propristy and LCompliance

As Accourting Officer of Dianogly Learning Trust § have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust Board of
Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency {ESFA]} of material irregularity, impropriely and non-
cormpliance with terms and conditions of alf funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in place
petween the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbaook 2023,

{ confirm that | and the Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all
funds by the Trust, or material nan-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding
agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023,

| confirm that no instances of material irregulanty, impropristy o funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified afler the date of this statement, these will be nolified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA,

Mir Mark Mallender
Aceounting Officer

Date: 11 ﬁw Q@&*’
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranies)

Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities
for the yoar ended 31 August 2024

The Truslees {who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trusteas’ report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees lo prepare financial stalements for each financial, Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the charitable company and of ther incoming resources and application of
resources, including their income and expenditure, for that pericd. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees are required to:

@ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Diraction
2023 t0 2024;

e make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

® state whether applicable UK Accouniing Standards have bzen followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

° prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
group will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group and the charitable company’s transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and the charitable company and enable them toc ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2008, They are alsc responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustess are responsible for ensuring that in their conduct and operation the Group and the charitable
company apply financial and other controis, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good

financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring granis received from ESFA/DIE have been
applied for the purposes intended,

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and inlegrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statlements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by

Mr Timothy Slade
Chair of Trustees

Date: |3, D eComhair ’é_OlLt
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantae)

independent audifors’ Report on the financial statements o the Members of Djanogly Learning Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Djancgly Learning Trust (the ‘parant Trust) and its subsidiaries (the
‘Group') for the year ended 31 August 2024 which comprise the Consolidated statement of financial activities, the
Consolidated balance sheet, the Trust balance shest, the Consolidated statement of cash flows and the refated
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policles. The financial reporting framawork that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable faw, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 fo 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

I our opinion the financial statements:

] give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024
and of the Group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure
for the year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in zccordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice; and

® have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounis Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agsncy.

Basis for opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)} and applicable
law, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statemments in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Eihical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiiiies in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions refating to going concern

In auditing the financial staterents, we have concluded that the Truslees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriale.

Based on the work we have performad, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubf on the Group's or the parent Trust's abifity
to continue as a going concern for a pericd of af least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue,

Our responsibiliies and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
refevant sections of this report.
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DJANOGLY LEARMNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

independent auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of Djanogly Learning Trust
{continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the finangial statements
and our Auditors’ report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears lo be materially misstated. if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a malerial misstalement in the financial
statements themseives. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact.

We have nothing {0 report in this regard.
Opinion on other matiers prescribad by the Companies Act 2008

In our opinion, based on the work underiaken in the course of the audit;

. the information given in the Trustees’ report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

° the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Trust and its environment oblained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the
Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation lo which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to vou i, in our opinion

* the parent Trust bas not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent Trust financial statements are not in agreement with the accounling records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Truslees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees’ responsihilities, the Trustees {who are also the direciors of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being salisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whather
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Trusiees are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
Trust's ability o conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either inlend lo liquidate the Group or the
parent Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but 1o do so.
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| with appiucab w afd regulatmns
. 'Perforrnmg audit work over the risk’of management ovemde of contro!s |ncludmg testmg of journai entrtes

_and’ other dju tments  for approiﬁriéieness evaluatmg the business rationale of . significant transact:ons

' outside the nonnai course of business and reviewmg accountmg eetlmates for bias In parhcular rev:ew of

~ -pension. liabilities; -
o Aseparale limited scape feguianty review has been undertaken in respect of comphance wr(h the Academy
Trust Handbook and our report i in res;)eet of this is contamed w:thm the financial statemenls _ :

itis the pnmary responsrbiltty of management with the oversrght of those charged with govemance to ensure
- that the entity's operations are conducted in accordance wﬂh the prowsmns of Iaws and regulatlons and fer the _
preventlon and detectlon of fraud. '

. ;Because of the mherent tlmltatnons of an aucht there is a risk that we vnﬁ not detect all :rragularrtnes lncludmg
those leading to a material ‘misstatement in the financial statements or. nen-compltance with regulation. This risk
increases theé more that compliance with a law or regulation s ‘remioved from the ‘events and transactions
reflécted in the fi nanmal statements, as we will be léss hkely to become aware of instances of non-comphance :
The risk is " also greater regarding ireqularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud mvotves
mtentlonal concealment forgery, colius:on omission or mlsrepresentation
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DJANOGLY LEARNENG TRUST
. (A Company Limlted by Gﬁarantee)

[ndependent audstors Report on the fnnanclal statements to the Members of Djanogly Learning Trust
. (canémued}

A further descrzptlon of our responsibilities for. the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors”. report y

' Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable ‘i’rust s members asa body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might staté to the charitable Trust's
members those matters we are required to state fo them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

WS C.OW b kA

Sarah Flear (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

PKF Smith Cooper Audit Limited
Statutory Auditors '

2 Lace Market Square

Nottingham

NG11PB

Date: U@ \Lul/\(/
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limiled by Guarantes}

indepandant Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Djanogly Learning Trust and
the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement lstter dated 2 July 2020 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skilis Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we
have carried out an engagement o obtain limited assurance sbout whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Dianogly Leaming Trust during the year 1 Septermber 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authotities which
govern them,

This report is made sofely to Djanogly Learning Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of cur engagement
fetter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state (o Djanogly Learning Trust and ESFA those matters
we are required to state in @ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest exdent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Djanogly Learning Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this
raport, of for the conclusion we have formed,

Respactive responsibilities of Djanogly Learning Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
acocountant

The accounting officer is responsible, undsr the reguirements of Djanogly Learning Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 Seplember 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expendifure disbursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform lo the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to oblain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requiremenis of the Acaderies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come
o our attention in carrying oul our work which suggests that in all material respects, expendilure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Paritament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We corducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement ictier.

The objective of & limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as o obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negalive conclusion on
regularity.

A fimited assurance sngagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to oblain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in 3 reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do nol express a positive opinion.

Qur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant o the reguiarity and propriety of the
Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusions included the following:

e Planned our assurance procedures ingluding identifying kay risks;

e Carried out a program of substantive testing, including review of the program of work and findings in relation
to internat scrutiny;

s Undertook controls testing where considered appropriate;

s Concluded on the procedures underiaken.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Djanogly Learning Trust and
the Education & Skills Funding Agency {continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come o our afiention which suggest in all material respects the
expendilure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parllament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them

0t Qi (oo Modue lodord

PKF Smith Cooper Audit Limited
Statutory Auditors

2 Lace Market Square

Notlingham
NG1 1PB

pate. [\ L&"L&(/
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DJANOGLY LEARMNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Consolidated Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditura 2ccount}
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Mote

income from:

Donations and capital
grants 3
Other trading activities
Invastments 6
Charitable activities:
Funding for the

academy trust's

education operations 4

o

Total income

Enpenditure on:
Raising funds 7
Charitabile activities:

Academy trust
educational operations 8

Total expenditure

Mot
incomel{expanditure}

Transfars batween
funds 18

Met movement in
funds before other
racognised
gains/{iosses}

Other recognised
galnsilosses):

Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension

schemes 25
Deracognition of

defined benefit pension
asset 25

Met movement in
funds

Restricted

Unresiricted Restricted fixed asset Total Tofat
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £060 £000
76 1128} 5,432 5,330 1,752
710 - - Ti¢ 842
126 - - 126 69
- 25,090 - 25090 22,578
iz 24982 5432 31,368 25,041
106 264 - 370 324
975 24,469 2,149 27,583 24 373
4,081 24,733 2,149 27,863 24 697
{168} 278 3,283 3,343 344

- {684} 684 - -
(169} {455} 3,967 3,343 344
w 422 - 422 543
- (378} - {378) {157}
{168} {411} 3,867 3,387 1,130
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaranteg)

Consolidated Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)
fcontinued)
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Totaf
funds funds funds funds furds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Mote £000 £00¢ £000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of
funds:
Totat funds brought
forward 18 821 2,211 80,437 53,469 62,339
Net movement in funds 18 {169} {411) 3,887 3,387 1,130
Total funds carried
forward 852 1,800 64,404 66,856 63 469

The Consolidated staterent of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year,

The notes on pages 34 to 84 form part of these financial statements
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DJANGGLY LEARMING TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guaranies}
Registerad number: 04544722

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 August 2024

Mote
Fixed assels
Tangible assels 14
Current assels
Debtors 16
Cash at bank and in hand 22
Creditors: amounis falling due within one
year 17
det currant assets
Total assets less current Habilities
Met asssis excluding pension Habillty
Defined benefit pension schemae liability 25
Total net asssls
Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 18
Restricted income funds 18

Restricted funds excluding pension liability 18

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

18

18
18

§6.534

2024
£000
63,964
63,854
1,499
4,263
5,768
(2,546}
3,222
67,186
67,186
{330}
66,856
64,404
2,330
{330}
66,204
§52
66,866

63,039

2023
£000
60,437
60,437
938
4,934
5,872
(2,449}
3,423
63,860
63,860
(391}
63,469
60,437
2,602
(351)
62,648
821
63,469
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DJANOQGLY LEARMING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantes)
Registered number: 04544722

Consolidated bajance sheet {continued)
as at 31 August 2024

The financial statements on pages 27 to 64 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are
signed on their behalf, by:

ey 4=

Bir ?imo}hy Slade
et (L4t Dreembase Loy

The notes on pages 34 (o 64 form part of these financial stalements.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limiled by Guaraniee}
Registered numbser: 04544722

Fixed sssels
Tangible assels

Current asssts

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Craditors: amournits falling dus within one
year

Mot current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Met assets excluding ponsion lability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension liability

Pension raserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Hote

14

16

17

25

i8
18

18
18

18
i8

Trust balance sheet
as at 31 August 2024

2024

£000

63,964

63,964
1,567
4,200
5,767

{2,5486)

3,221

67,185

87,185

(330

66,866
64,404
2,224
86,625

{330}

66,295

560

66,855

iy

63,048

2023
£000
60,437
60,437
1,271
4,601
5872
{2,450}
1422
63,859
63,859
(3%1)
63,468
60,437
2,609
{391}
62,655
813
63,468
po s

Page 31



DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 04544722

Trust balance sheet {continued)
as at 31 August 2024

The financial statements on pages 27 to 64 were approved and authonsed for issue by the Trustees and are
signed on their behaif, by:

T SHE

Mr Timothy Slade
Chair of Trustees
Date: lLQi b Leenlur 30 3’-%

The notes on pages 34 to 64 form pant of these financial statements.

Page 32



DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantse)}

Consotidsted statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 August 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Met cash (used inyprovided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash squivalents af the end of the year

The notes on pages 34 {o 64 form part of these financial statements.

Note

20

2%

22,23

2024 2023
£000 £000
{580} 1,424
{85} (708)
(665} 716
4,934 4,218
4,269 4,934
P e A e b 2
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Accounting policies

1.4

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial staterents of the Group, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention 1n accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of reland {(FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charitles preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporiing Standard applicable i the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)). the Academies Accounts Direclion 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006

Djanogly Learning Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,

The financial statements are prepared in stering which is the functional currency of the Trust and
rounded to the nearest £1 000

The registered office of the Trust is slated on the Reference and Adminstrative Details page.

The Consolidated statermnent of financial activities (SOFA) and Consolidated balance sheet
consolidate the financial stalements of the Trust and its subsidiary undertaking. The results of the
subsidiary are consclidated on a line by line basis,

The Trust has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 and has not presenied its own Statement of financial activities in these financial statements.

For the year ended 31 August 2024 the Trust generated a surplus of £3,387k (2023; £1,130k).

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate Le. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or condilions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern, The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period
of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial slalemenis and have
concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a

going concern, thus they cantinue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial staterments.
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DJANCOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{& Company Limited by Guarantee)

MNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Accounting policies (continued}

1.3

1.4

fncome

All incoming resources are recognised when the Group has entitiement fo the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured refiably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Consofidated statement of financial activities on & receivable basis. The
balance of income recaived for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the
relevant funds on the Balance sheet, Where income is received in advance of meeling any
performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its
racognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income untii the performance-related
conditions are mel, Where entitlemant occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

Generat Annual Grant s recognised in full in the Consclidated statement of financial activities In the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in raspect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance shest in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the fife of the asset on
which they are expended.

Bonations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be raliably measured.

Other income

Other incoma, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Group has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets znd liabiliies are received by the Group on conversion to an academy, the transferred
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet at the point when the risks
and rewards of ownership pass to the Group. An equal amount of income Is recognised as a transfer
on conversion within ‘Income from Donations and Capitat Grants’ to the net assets received.

Expanditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
{o a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in setflement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure Is classified by activity, The costs
of each aclivily are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
invalved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable lo 2 single activity are aliccated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportionsd between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are alfocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the assel's use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all axpenditure incurred by the Group fo raise funds for ils charitable purposes end
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranige)

Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Accounting policies {continued)

1.4

1.5

16

1.7

Expenditure {continued)

Charitable activities

These are cosls incurred on the Group's educational operations, including support cosls and costs
relating to the governance of the Group apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Government grants

Government granis relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to
the Consolidated slatement of financial activities over the expected useful lives of the assets

concerned. Other grants are credited to the Consolidated statement of financial activities as the
relaled expenditure is incurred.

Taxation

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set cut in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust is polentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categones covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, fo the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes

The trading subsidiary's ax expense for the year comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss except that a charge altributable to an item of income and expense recognised as other
comprehensive income or to an item recognised directly in equity is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rales and laws that have been
enacted o substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates income.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1.500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment,

Where tangible fixed asseis have been acquwed with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private seclor, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related granis are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Consolidated staterment of financial activities and camied forward in the Balance shest.
Depreciation on the relevant assels is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Conschdated statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction. at rates calculated to wrile off the cost of each assel on a stralght-line basis over is
expected useful life, as follows.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantse}

Motes to the financial statementis
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Accounting policies {continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets {(continusd)
Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-tarm leasehold land - over the length of the lease
Long-term leasehold property - 1.87% - 20% straight line
Furniture and equipment - 10% - 33.3% straight line
Computer equipment - 20% - 33 3% straight tine

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is canied out if events or changes in circumstances indicale
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalis between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impaimments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated statement of financiatl aclivities.

All long-tenm leasehold assels have been subject io professional valuations.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settfement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of 85 days or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.10 Liabiflties

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be reguired in setilement, and the amount
of the settiement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Group
anticipates it wili pay to seftle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide,

4.41 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a
past event which it is probable will result in the transfar of economic henefits and the obligation ¢an
be estimated refiably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required {o settle the obligation. Where
the effact of the lime value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Accounting policies {continued)

1.12 Financial instruments

The Group only holds basic financiat instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Group and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assels - trade and other debiors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured al amortised cost as detailed in note 16, Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment,

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabilties - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as delailed in note 17, Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Trust's wholly owned subsidiary
are held at face value less any impairment.

1.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged o the Consolidated statement of financiat activities
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

4.14 Pensions

Retirement benefils to employess of the Gioup are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"TP8"} and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current ard fulure pensionable pavroll. The contributions are
delermined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi.-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is freated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the condributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assels are held separately from those of the
Group in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair vaiue
and liabilities are measured on an acluarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabiliies. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged 1o cperating surplus are the
current service costs and the cosis of scheme introductions, benefit changes, seftlemenis and
curtallments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities and
comprises the inferest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used lo discount the benefit obligations The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assels and the acluad return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains
and losses.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limlted by Guarantee)

Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Accounting poficies (continued}

1.14 Pensions {continued}

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immedialely in other recognised gains and losses.

1.18 Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained school to & Trust involved the transfer of identifiable assets
and hiabilities and the operation of the school for £NIL consideration. The substance of the transferis
that of a gift and it has been sccounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assels and liabllities fransferred on conversion from Hilltop Primary Acadenmy to the Trust have
baen valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on thal of equivalent items.
The amounts have been recognised under the appropriale Balance sheet categories, with a
corresponding amount recognised in Income from Donations and Capital Grants in the Consclidated
staterment of financial activities and analysed under unresiricted funds, restricted general funds and
restricted fixed asset funds.

Further details of the transaclion are set out in note 24,

1.16 Agency arrangsments

The Trust acts as an agent in distributing 18-18 bursary funds from the ESFA. The Trust can use up
1o 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recogrised in the statement of
financial activities, The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 28

1.17 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards mesting any of the
charitable objects of the Group at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are fo be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders wherg the assel acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricied general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restictions imposed by the
funderidonor and include grants from the Department for Edugation Group.
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

Motes to tha financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believed 10 be reasonable under the
circumstances,

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seidom equal the related actual resulis. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Local Governmant Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefitl liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a vardely of assumptions, The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liabilily. Futhermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a fult
actuarial valuation would wnpact on the canrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

As a result of the current market conditions factored into the assumptions applied by the LGPS scheme
actuary, the acluarial valuation at the year-end has resulted in a surplus position on 2 of the schemaes
within the Trust. The recognition of a surplus under FRS102 should only be made to the extent that an
employer can expect to secure economic benefit from i, either by paying a reduced rate of contribubions
or taking a refund, Management have assessed both considerations and concluded the following:

» Based on historic practices and updates on fulure expectations from the administering authority,
management do nat anticipate that the next actuarial valuation will result in a reduction to
contributions due o current market conditions.

+ The availability of any potential cash refund once all liabililes have been paid is based on several
unpredictable future outcomes set out in the scheme rules that cannot be reasonably assumed at this
stage. As a resuit, management consider there to be a very low possibility of a cash refund

From the above conclusion the surplus balance has therefore been restncted to a value of “nil” at the

year-end. The derecognition adjusiment 1s shown as other recognised gains/osses in the Statement of
Financial Activities.
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HMotes to the financial statemenis
for the year ended 31 August 2624

income from donations and capital grants

Restricied
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Totat Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£060 E£000 £000 £000 £000
Oonations 43 - - 43 100
Grants - . 2,235 2,235 366
Transferred on conversion 33 (128} 3,197 3,162 1,286
78 {128) 5,432 5,380 1,752
Folal 2023 124 {215} 1,843 1,752
Funding for the Trust's educational operations
Restricted Total Tatat
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£060 £0G0 £000
DIEIESFA grants
General Annual Grant {GAG} 18,707 18,707 16,854
Other DIE/ESFA grants
Pupil Premium 1,892 4,882 1,787
Mainstream Schools Additional Grant 611 611 -
UIFSM 144 144 141
16-18 Core Education Funding 580 580 341
QOther BfE Group grants 1,143 1,143 1,330
23,077 23,077 20,453
Other Government grants
Local authority granis 1,921 1,821 2,063
CGther income from the Trust's educational operations g2 92 &2
76,080 25,090 22,578
P et e
Total 2023 22,578 22 578
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the yoar ended 31 August 2024

Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Total Total

funds funds funds

2024 2024 2023

EQOG £000 £000

Catenng income 224 224 200
Letbngs income - trading subsidiary 892 92 121
Other income 394 394 321

710 710 642
In 2023 all Income from other trading aclivities related to unrestricted income.

investment income

Unrestricted Total Tatal
funds funds funds
2024 2024 20232
£000 £000 £000
Investment income 126 126 638
]
Total 2023 89 69
Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 £600 £0600 £000
Expenditure on raising funds
Direct costs - - 370 3re 324
Academy lrust's education
operations
Direct costs 17,438 1,636 1.058 20,130 17.717
Allocatad support costs 3.526 1,031 2.9086 7,463 6,656
20,964 2667 4,332 27,963 24 697
Totat 2023 18,470 2,571 3,656 24,697
e T — e —————— T ————8
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{A Company Limdted by Guarantes}

Motes to the financizl statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities
undertaken Support Totat Toltaf
directly costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£000 £000 gace £000
Academy brust's educational operations 20,130 7,463 27,5%3 24,373
Totaf 2023 17.717 8,656 24,373
] T
Analysis of direct costs
Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023
£060 £O00
Staff costs 17,438 15,127
Depraciation 1,638 1,543
Other direct cosis 1,056 1,047
26,130 17,717
Analysis of support costs
Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023
EOCG EGO0
Staff costs is26 3,343
Depreciation 513 349
Other support costs 1,780 1,444
Premises cosls 1,031 1,028
Technology costs 536 432
Governance costs &7 &0
7463 6,656
e e
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Net incoms/{expenditurs)

Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for

- audit

- other services

2024
£000

102
2,149

30
5

2023
£000

1,892

27
5

R —————— RS

During the year, there were no individual transactions exceeding £5,000 falling under the following

headings:

- Gifts made by the Trust
- Fixed asset losses

- Stock losses

- Unrecoverable debts
- Cash losses

Btaff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year weare as follows.

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance paymants

Group Group
2024 2023
£000 FO0O

46,407 14,300
1,445 1,201
3,112 2,968

20,964 18,470
1,280 1,327

25 18

22,269 19,815

25 18
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Seaff (continued)
b. Severance payments
The Group paid 2 severance paymenis in the year, disclosed in the following bands:
Group

2024
Meo.

£40 - £25,00C z

¢. Nor-contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restruchuring costs are non-contractual severance payments lotalling £7,900 (2023
£4,189). Individually, the paymaents were: £6,700 and £1,200.

During the year, no honorarium paymenis were made (2023: Nil}.
d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Group and the Trus! during the year was as follows:

Group Group Trust Trust
2024 2023 2024 2023

Mo, No. No. No

Teachers 184 179 184 178
Administration and support 291 282 291 282
Management 38 36 3% 36
514 497 £44 437
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Notes to the financial statemants
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Staff {continued)

e, Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:

Group Group
2024 2023
o, No.
in the band £60,001 - £70,000 10 [*]
in the band £70,001 - £80,000 4 4
in the band £80.001 - £80.000 ] 1
in the band £90,001 - £100,000 - 3

in the band £100,001 - £410,000 3 -
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 - 1

In the band £140,001 - £150.000 1 .

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management teamn as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the Trust was £650,469 (2023 - £583, 186).

Central services

The Group has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

a

Financiat services" financial planning, budgeting, management accounts, full payrol! services,
cash and banking, auditing and a central system for online authorisation of both orders and
invoices

Human resources: palicy review, union consultation and communication, cantral HR system,
support advice and guidance for employment law issues including tribunals, dismissals ete
Marketing: PR management, communications advice and guidance, press relationships,
marketing strategy development

Operational support: health and safety coordination, risk management, estates strategy and
project management davelopmant

Clerking services for local governing bodies and their sub commiftees

ICT support for infrastructure, local networks and hardware (servers io tablets)

Legal services provided through insurers and professional advisers
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

Motss to the financial stafements
for the vear ended 31 August 2024

The Group charges for these services on the following basis

The charge for this service is calculated as a8 % of income with the actual % depending on the size of

academy.

The actual amounts charged during the year ware as follows:

Dianogly City Academy
Djanogly Northgate Academy
Djanogly Strelley Academy
Springfield Academy

Langtey Mill Academy
Laceyfields Acadamy
Djanogly Sherwood Academy
Kensington Junior Academy
Morton Primary Academy
Hilltap Prirmary Academy

Total

Trustees' remuneration and expensss

2024 2023
£000 £000
38 369
&7 104
105 103
61 56
70 71
1% 22
84 73
1) 47
r) 13
15 -
828 a55

During the year, no Trustees recsived any remunaration or other benefits (2023 - £NIL).

During the year, retirement benefifs were accruing to no Trustees (2023 - none} in respect of defined

cortribution pension schemes,

During the year ended 31 August 2024, expenses totalling £Nil were reimbursed or pald directly to

Trustees (2023 - £N#).

Trustees' and Cfficers’ insurance

The Group has opled into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA}, an
alternative o insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protscts
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions oceurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. i is not possible to quantify the Trustees and

officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme memberahip,
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Tangible fixed assets

Group and Trust

Cost or valuation

At 1 September 2023
Adddions

Acuauirad on conversion

At 31 August 2024

Depraciation
At 1 September 2023
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2024

Net book value

At 31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

Principal subsidiaries

DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Long-term Furniture

leaschold and  Computer

property  egquipment  equipment Total
£600 £000 £600 £000
72,944 1,123 1,776 75,837
1,475 497 597 2,479
3,197 . - 3,497
77,515 1,530 2,367 81,513
43,387 794 1,208 15,406
1.635 168 345 2,148
15,032 863 1,584 17.545
§2,584 567 813 £3,964
59,547 323 561 60,437

The following was a subsidiary undertaking of the Trust:

Name: Djanogly Lettings Limited

Company number: 12148002
Class of shares: Crdinary

Holding: 100%

inchuded in consolidation; Yes

Resuits for the year ended 31 August 2024 were as follows.

Income: £91,985
Expenditure: (£90,276)

Profit/ (Loss) for the year: £1.719

Met assets: £411
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Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 37 August 2024

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade deblors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
{ther debtors

Prepayments and acerued income
Tax recovershls

Creditors: Amounts falling dus within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Dieferred income at 1 September 2023
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous pericds

Group Group Trust Trust
2024 2023 2024 2023
£000 £000 £000 £060

2586 50 239 a1
- - 92 352

12 10 12 1¢
820 660 813 659
311 218 314 219
1,498 938 1,567 1,271
porimermme e g f e R T = Y

Groug Group Trust Trust
2024 2023 2024 2023
ECGo £000 £600 £000

556 484 556 484
344 302 344 3oz
706 567 708 567
840 1,088 940 1.087
2,548 2,449 2,545 2450
oo g poee———————

Group Group Trust Trust
2024 2023 2024 2023
£600 £000 £600 £000

458 510 458 510
510 458 610 458
{458} {510} {458} (510}
8§10 458 610 458

At 31 August 2024, the Trust was holding funds received in advance for Universal Free School Meals
(E82k), Early Years funding (£105k}, Higher Learning Meeds funding (£383k} and Other intome (E23k).

Al 31 August 2023, deferred income included funds received in advance for Universal Free School Meals
{£73K), Early Years funding {£138k), Higher Learning Needs funding (£245k} and Trip income {£1k}).
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MNotes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Statement of funds
Balance at § Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2024
£0006 £000 £000 £000 £000 £0600
Unrestricied
funds
Unrestricted
funds 797 g7¢ {1,081) - - 595
Transfer on
conversion 4 33 - - - 87
821 912 {1,081} - - 682
Restricted
genaral funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 2,565 18,707 {18,592} {684} - 2,096
16-18 core
education
funding . 580 {580) - . -
Pupil premiurn - 4,892 {1,892) - - -
Mainstream
schools
additional grant - 611 {811} - - -
QOther grants 7 3,360 {3,303) - - 34
Pension reserve {391) {128} {45 . 44 {330}
2,211 24,962 (24,733} {684) 44 1,800
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DIE/ESFA
capital grants 14,962 2,235 (400} - - 16,797
Capital
expenditure from
GAG 4,279 - (114) 684 - 4,848
Transfer on
conversion 41,193 3197 {1,635} - - 42,785
Other capital
grants 3 - - - - 3
60,437 5,432 {2,148} 6§84 - 64,404

Page 50



DJAMOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes}

HMoles to the financlal statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

18. Statement of funds {continued)

Balance at 1 Balance at
Saptember Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2024
E0GO £000 £000 £600 £000 £000

Totai Restricted
funds 62,648 30,394 {36 882} - 44 §6,204
Total funds 63,469 31,306 {27,863} - 44 66,856
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

HMotes to the financial statements
for the year anded 31 August 2024

Statement of funds {continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as foflows:

Unrestricted funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objeclives of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees,

Restricted funds {excluding pension and ofher restricied reserves) represent funds received from the
Depariment for Education and is specifically spent on the running of the Trust,

Other grants represents funds which are restricted by the donor including school trip income.

Restricted fixed asset funds represent resources which are applied to specific capilal purposes imposed
by the Department for Education where the assel acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

The Pension Reserve is a fund in deficit as this relates to the Local Government Pension Scheme, the
Trusiees review the deficit on a regular basis and are advised by an exdernal actuary.

Transfers between funds represent movement of funds in relation to the purchase of fixed assels,

Under the funding agreement with the Secrelary of State, the Trust was nol subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2024,
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{4 Company Limited by Guarantee}

Motes (o the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Statement of funds {continued)

Comparative Information in respect of the preceding year is as follows

Balance af Balance at
1 September Transfars Gainsy 31 August
2022 income  Expenditurs infout {Lossas) 2023
£EC0O £00D £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrastricted
funds
Unrestricted
funds 624 811 {838} . - 797
Transfer on
convarsion - 24 - - - 24
824 835 {838} - - 821
Restricted
general funds
General Annusal
Grant {GAG) 2378 17,185 (18,617} {776} - 2,780
Pupil premium - 1,787 {1,787} - - -
Cther grants 37 3,596 {3,586} - - 37
Transfer on
conversion - {215} . - - {215)
Pension reserve (610} - (567} - 758 (381}
1,805 22,363 {21,967} (778} 7886 2,211
Rastricted fixed
asset funds
DIE/ESFA
capital grants 14,874 386 (278} - . 14,962
Capitat
expenditure from
GAG 3571 - (68) 776 - 4,279
Transfer on
conversion 41259 1,477 {1,643} - . 41,193
Other capital
granis & - (3} - - 3
56 710 1,843 {1,892} 778 - 60,437
Total Restricted
funds 861515 24,206 {23,858} - 786 62,648
Totat fumnds 62,339 25,041 {24,697} - 788 63,469
e Y e frammeoeaerm————g
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DJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Statement of funds (continued)

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £000
Djancgly Learning Trust 2,782 3423
Restricted fixed asset fund 64,404 66,437
Pension reserve {330) {391)
Total 56,856 63,469

Total funds analysis by academy

The Trust has opled not to show an analysis of fund balance by individual academy, as it is not thought to
ba meaningful for the following reasons:

Dianogly Learning Trust has seen a significant shift in the budget setting process 16 a much more Trust
wide approach, which has resulted in the Trus! pooling its reserves across all academies to ensure a long
term financially sustainable and viable organisation, the main features being;

1} Ability to invest in sducation for the children and facilities

2) Ability to survive structural changes in the financial flows of the education sector
3} Strength o be able to delver efficiency savings on a medium to long term basis
4} Maintain a healthy cash position, to cope with short term financial shocks

The approach has seen the Trust centralise all operational costs such as marketing, finance, HR, data
and governance and estates and facilities to ensure the organisation is operating efficiently whilst aiso
delivering a high class quality service to all its academies.

The costs have been shared across the academies using a fair farmula, taking account of need within
gach academy.
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18, Siatement of funds {continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
suppaort support Educalional excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supphies depreciation 2624 2023
£000 £800 £060 £060 £006 £GO0
Djanogly City
Academy 8,330 1,378 540 1422 9,570 8,500
Djanogly
Northgate
Academy 1.746 235 132 289 2,402 2,484
Dijanogly Strelley
Academy 2.088 240 133 478 2,887 2831
Bpringfietd
Academy 1.174 182 86 257 1,709 1,615
Centrat Services 834 818 74 146 1,873 1.383
Langley Mill
Academy 1,524 1583 103 256 2,036 1,842
Laceviields
Acaderny 413 65 33 94 608 585
Kensington
Junior Academy 923 114 57 203 1,297 1,221
Djanogly
Sherwood
Academy 1,602 205 75 258 2,140 2013
Morion Primary
Academy 487 69 37 139 732 azt
Hilltop Primary
Academy 317 56 20 70 483 -
Trust 17,438 3,526 1,290 3,560 25,814 22,805
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{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2024

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets ~ - 63,964 63,964
Current assels 2,740 2,588 440 6,758
Creditors due within one year {2,088) (458) - {2,54¢6)
Provisions for labilities and charges . {330) - (330}
Total 652 1,800 64,404 66,856

usepeemveeISISIITISE  Sieewsetessssee
Analysis of net assets between funds - pricr pariod
Reslricled

Unrestricted  Resticted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 60,437 60,437
Current assets 2,812 3,060 - 5872
Credilors due within one year {1,991} {458} - {2,449}
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (391) - {391}
Total 821 2211 60437 63,469
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BJANOGLY LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Notes to the financlal statements
for the year ended 31 August 20624

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the period (as per Statement of financial activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Investment income

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation transfarred on conversion
{increase)decrease in deblors

increase in creditors

Capital granis from DfE and other capital income

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

MNet assets fransferred from logal authority on conversion

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

Met cash {used in)fprovided by operating activitiss

Cash flows from investing activitles

investment income

Purchase of tangible fixed assels

Capital grants from DIk Group

Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust

Het cash used in Investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

2024 2023
£600 £000
3,343 344
2,149 1,892
{126} (69}
128 218
{864} 475
87 65
{2,236} {368)
{108} 353
{3,236} {1,477
(38} (8}
(680} 1.424
Group Group
2024 2023
EGGO £000
425 3
(2,478} (1,167}
2,238 386
33 24
{85) {708}
Group Group
2024 2023
£000 £000
4,268 4,934
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Analysis of changes in net debt

At
September At
2023 Cash flows August 2024
£000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,934 {665} 4,289

Conversion to an academy trust

On 01 April 2024 Hilltop Primary School converted o academy trust stalus under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Djanogly Learning Trust from
Derbyshire County Council for ENi consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that s in substance a git. The assets and
kabiities transfarred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Consolidated balance sheet
under the appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the
Consolidated stalement of financlal activiies as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer
from local authority on conversion.

The foliowing table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Consolidated statement of financial activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings - - 3,197 3,197
Current assets

Cash - representing budget surplus on
LA funds 33 - - 33

Mon-current liabilities

LGPS pension liability - (128) - {128)
Net assets/(liabilities) 33 {128) 3,197 3,102
St meeY. R ———— b e T

Pension and simifar obligations

The Trust's employees belong to twe principal pension schemes' the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Nottinghamshire County Council and Derbyshire County Council.
Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes,

The latest actuariat valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to
the period ended 31 March 2022
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Pension and similar obligations {continued)

Contributions amounting to £391,000 were payable to the schemes al 31 August 2024 (2023 - £316,000]
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS} is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership 15 automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these conlributions are credited to the Exchequer. Relirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Vzluation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap} Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 vears. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs arg recognised
and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of fulure costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The fatest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carmied out as at 31 March
2020. The valustion report was publishad by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, sel by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPL. The
key elements of the veluation outcome are;

® Employer contrbution rates set ai 28 88% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
tevy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

e ‘Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service {o the effective date of £262 000 mihon and noticnal assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments heid at the valuation date) of £222 200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £38,800 million.

The rasult of this valuation will be implemented from 1 Aprit 2024, The next valuation result is due io be
implemented frorm 1 April 2018,

The emplover's pension costs paid ta TPS in the year amounted to £2,190,000 (2023 - £1,777,000}.

A copy of the valuation report and supporing documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
{hiips:/iwww teacherspensions.co.uk/newsfemployers/2019/04fteachers-pensions-valuation-repori.aspx}.

Under the definitions set owt in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme, The
Group is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and fiabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the
Group has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its confributions to the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Group has set cut above the information
avaiiable on the scheme.
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Motes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2024

Peonsion and similar obligations {continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assels held in separate trustee-
adminislered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £1 408,000 (2023
- £1,135,000), of which employers contributions tolalled £1,073.,000 (2023 - £861,000) and employees’
cantributions totalled £ 335,000 (2023 - £274,000). The agreed cantribadion rates for future vears are 17.9
- 21.8% per cent for empioyers and 5.5 - 12 5% per cent for employees

Parhiament has agreed, at the request of the Secrelary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Departiment for Education. The guarantes came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guaraniee, with a pariiamentary minute
published on GOV UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2024 2023

% %

Rate of increase In salaries 365-380 385-395
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 265.280 285.295
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 500-810 520-530

The cutrent mortality assumptions include sufficient altowance for future improvements in mortality rates,
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2024 2023
Years Years

Refiring today
Males 204-208 204-208
Females 233.238 232-238
Retiring in 20 years
Males 21.86-24.7 21.6-21.7
Females 247-253 246-253
Sensitivity analysis

2024 2023

£000 £000
Discount rate +0 5% 629 1,356
Discount rate -0.5% {889} (1,571}
Pension increase rate +0.5% 904 (1,526}
Pension increase rate -0.5% {624) 1,318

p— s IR e
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Pension and similar obligations {continued}
Share of scheme assels
The Group's share of the assets in the scheme was!

A% 31 At 31 August

August 2024 2023

£006 £QOC

Equities 42,702 10,580
Gilts 393 281
Corporate bonds 1,899 1,507
Properly 2,048 1,929
Cash and other liquid assets 1,162 974
Other 2,545 2,288

Total markst value of ansets 70,743 17,562

Tha actual retum on schame assets was £1,706,000 (2023 - £33,000},

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities are as follows:

2024 2023

£000 £000
Current service cost {880} {1,214}
Interest cost B3 8
Administrative expenses {N) {7}
Total amount recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial
activities {828} (#,213}
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligations were as follows:

2024 2023

£600 £000
At 1 September 17,182 17,460
Transferred in on conversion 878 572
Current service cost 860 1,214
Interest cost 825 756
Employee contributions 335 274
Actuarial losses/{gains) 320 {2,657}
Benefits paid (377} {437}
AL 31 August 18,923 17,182
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Pension and similar obligations {continued}

Changes in the farr value of the Group's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2024 2023
£009 £000
At 1 September 16,791 16,850
Transferred in on conversion 450 357
interest income 864 764
Actuarial gains/{losses) 742 {1,714}
Employer contributions 1,073 861
Employee contributions 335 274
Benefits paid {377} (437}
Administrative expenses {7} {7}
Re-ntroduction of brought forward pension surplus 777 629
Derecognition of pension supluses {1,158) {777}
At 31 August 19,593 16,791

LGPS surplus position

As a result of the current market conditions factored into the assumplions applied by the LGPS scheme
actuary, the actuarial valuation at the year-end has resulted in a surplus position on 2 of the schemes
within the Trust. As at 31 August 2024, the actuarial valuation for the Trus! includes a surpius totalling
£810,000 on the MNottinghamshire {DCA} scheme and a surplus of £245 000 on the Derbyshire (DLY)
scheme. The surpiuses, totalling £1,155,000, have not been recognised within the financial stalements,

The recognition of a surplus under FRS102 should only be made to the extent that an employer can
expect 1o secure economic benefit from it, either by paying a reduced rate of contributions or {aking a
refund, Management have assessed both considerations and concluded the following:

Based on historic practices and updates on future expectations from the administering authority,

management do not anticipate that the next actuarial valuation will result in a reduction to contribulions
due to curren! market condifions.

The availability of any potential cash refund once all Habilittes have been paid s based on several
unpredictable fulure outcomes set out in the scheme rules that cannot be reasonably assumed at this
stage. As a result, management consider there 10 be a very low possibility of a cash refund.

From the above conclusion, the surplus balance has therefore been restricted to a value of *nil” at the

year-end. The derecognition adiustment is shown as cother recognised gains/losses in the Statement of
Financial Activities,
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Operating lease commilimenis

At 31 August 2024 the Group and the Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments
unger non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Group Group Trust Trust

2024 2023 2024 2023

£000 £600 £080 £000

Mot later than 1 year 104 &7 104 87
Later than 1 year and not later than § years 344 287 144 297
448 384 448 384

e

flembers' abliity

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute o the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after helshe ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debls and habilities confracted
before he/she ceases to be & mernber.

Related party transactions

Cwing fo the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All ransactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all ransactions made
ot or after 1 April 2019 and obdaining thelr approval where required, and with the Trust's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

The Trust has entered into leases with the Lady Carol Djanogly Memorial Fund {LCDMF) to use certain
property and other assets ownad by LCDMF at a nominal rental. These leases are approved by the DIE.
Mr T Slade is & Trustee of LCDMF as well as being a Trustee of the Trust during the vear ended 31
August 2024, Officers of the Trust administered the business of LCDMF on their behalf. At 31 August
2024 the Trust owed LCDMF £322,000 (2023: £240,000).

The Trust has also entered into transactions with Dunelm Group ple. Mr W Adderiay is a Trustee of the
Trust and a Directar of that company during the year ended 31 August 2024. At 31 August 2024, the
Trust owed the refated party £Nil (2023: £Nil) in respect of goods purchased totalling £588 (2023 £705).

Buring the year the Trust has made sales of £34,000 (2023 £86 000) from & company within the group.
Al the balance sheet date, the amount due from this related party was £80,000 (2023: £353,000).
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Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-18 bursary funds fo students as an agent for ESFA. in the accounting period
ending 31 August 2024 the Trust received £33,019 and disbursed £20,188 from the fund. As at 31 August
2024, the cumulative unspent 16-19 bursary fund is £17,114, of which £Nil refates to undistrivuted funding
that 1s repayable to ESFA. Comparalives for the accounting period ending 31 August 2023 are £46,244

received, £43,478 disbursed, total cumulative unspent fund of £4,284 of which £Nil was repayable to
ESFA.
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